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PREFACE

Though small in area and population, these
islands in the semi-circle of West Indies extend-
ing from Cuba at the upper end, around through
Trinidad to Aruba at the lower have played an im-
portant part in the history of the western hemis-
phere since the discovery of those two great
continents, North and South America.

Foming, as they do, a natural gnteway be-
tween the old and new worlds, it is not surpris-
ing tla€ the great powers for centuries fought to
obtain and hold contrel of thom., Because of this
we find a great variety and admixture of languag-
es cnd customs, living proof of the chaos of car-
ly oveuts, It had the addod result of creating a
baffling confusion in the chronicling of histori-
cal fenturcs so that the compilation of an abso-
lutely cuthentic history is considered inmprobable
if not impossible,

Confining ourselves, then, to the Netherland
Wost Indies, witll which wo arc now intimntcly cone
nocted, we offor in this publication a "History"
which wo fecl is roasonably accurato,

Our effort is primarily intondced for the in-
torest aud bamefit of employses of the lago 0il
& Transport Commny, Linited, and subsidiary com-
paniocs, and is not an endcavor to enter into com-
potition with any similar publications, :



EARLY HISTORY OF THE TERRITORY

In order to obtain a comprchonsive idoa of tho
history of the Island of Aruba, it will first be
nocoasary to delve into the early history of the
Notherlond West Indics group, eonsisting of Curacano,
Aruba, Bonaire, Saba, St, Bustatius and St. Martin,

The carliest known inhabitants of tho group
of MNetherland Vest Indics Islands were the Aro-
wecks, & tribe of Indians origimmting in South
Ameriea, Little is known of their lmbits. Their
mode of burial differed from that of the Anerican
Indians in that the bwdies were baked in ecarthen
voga=11ke vessels md« of n peculiar clay. The
voso vas extremely haord in texture and airtight.
The bodies, as o generel rule, were placed in a
sitting posturc, Soveral of theso vases have boen
found 4in Aruba, sonme by Van Koolwl jk, a Catholic
priest, and aorec now to be seen in tho National
Muscum in Hollaad., These vases have also boen
found in Bonaire and Curneao,

Seaingly, this tribe of Arowccks wus extermi-
nated by a tribe of Caribes, who undoubtedly were
eave and cliff dwellers cg covidenced by the hicro-
glyphics found on the walls and ceilings of caves
on the Islands of Bomaire and Curacao. A fow good
examples of these hieroglyphics have also been
found in Amba in districts known ns Ayo and Piedra
Plata.

Credit for the discovery of the Islands of
Aruba, Curaceo, Bomaire, Trinidad and Margarite
has beon given +to Alonso Ojeda, o Spaniard who,
with a smll fleet, sailed from Santa Maria,Spain,
in May, 1499, landing on the Island of Curacoo in
tho same year, £vidence has been found in old vol-
umos and manuseripts thet Ojeda, noting the tro-
mendous size of ‘the Indiin inhabitanta, named tho



place "MHE IAND OF THE GIANTS". Ojeda has been
given, also, the credit for the colonizing of the
Islands, He established the first Spanish Colo-
nies in the West Indies and for the greater part
of the first century after discovery, Spain maine-
tained absolute power over these provinces.
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HOLLAITD CAPTURES AND RULES CURACAD

In the year 1597, and during the eighty
year war between Spain and Holland, Several or-
ganizations were formed in Rotterdam for the
purpose of plundering Spanish ships on the seas,
This commerce, known as legal Piracy, proved so
profitable that on June 3rd, 1621, the West In-
dia Company was formed in Rotterdam by the Gov-
ernment of Holland, being given a commercial
monopoly 4in the Western Hemisphere from the
southermost point of MNew Foundland to the Cape
of Good Hopo, which is the extrome point of Af-
rien, This inecluded all islands south of the
Propic of Cancer and also the coast of lorth and
South America, from the Meridian of tho Cupe of
Good Hope to the Meridian of New Guinca, Only
ships of the West Indin Company were poermitted
to trade in thesc parts and when any vessel of
another cnterprise was found, it was attacked,
plundered and sunk,

Tho Board of Directors, or Mmagement of
tho Wost India Company, was mado up of reproson=
tatives of five principal ecitics of Holland--
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Amnstordam, Rottordam, JSecaland, Fricsland, and
Croningen. This body of mnon was known as
GENTLEMEN XIX.

Tho capital iuvestmont of tho Company was
fls. 7,200,000,00, 1Its Directors worc crpoworocd
to onter into treaties with foroign onpires,
form ormiesa and navies, establish fortrosses,
equip flcets and install goverments., Thus the
djcat India Compny wos rosponsible only to tho
Sevon Unitoed Provineos.

Tho liest Iadin Company derived the majority
of its revenue fran the slave Trade. Tho slaves
were brought from Afriea and sold in tho ASSYEN-
0 or HEGROPONT in Curacco, Pricos ranged fron
600,00 to 1,000 florins, according to weight and
strength, Salt and Dyc dood trade woro also
grofitablo,

The origiml flect of tho West Indin Comp-
any oonsisted of thirty-two war ehips and oight
sloops of war,

In the carly part of the yoor 1634, tho
Wost Indic Company goinoed a permanont foothold
in Curacno by fittiing out a flect of four vea-
sols and with 285 +¢rairod soldiers sailed
against Curacao, then under OSpanish rule, and
conquered the Island on July 10, 1634. Sinco
1634, the Island of Curacao has remained under
Dutch control., -
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FETER STUYVESANT
Mr, Van YWelbocek wae the first GCovornor of
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Curacao, holding the office until 1636, There
then followed =a succession of Governors until
the year 1643, at which time the Parliament of
Holland eappointed Peter Stuyvesant,

Portugal and Brazil were at this time at
war, and some 200 refugees arrived from Brazil,
They swore allegiance to Holland and were dis-
patched to New Amstordam (Hew York) to protoet
that colony from the repeated attacks of the
American Indians, sailing from Curacao on the
"DE BILAUGE HAN,"

Most schoolboys know of Peter Stuyvesant
and his wooden leg fram American History. le
was shot during an cngngomont against  the
Freconch at S5t. Martin, The leg was amputated in
Curacao and buried in the Conctary thut, to this
day, boars his nomo,

Tho Parlinment of Holland approved the proe
posal of Stuyvesant to unito the Colonics of
Curacac and Now Nothorlands, and on July 28th
1646, ho bocame CGovormor of tho Now Entity with
hoadquarters in NHew Amstordam (New York),

DUTCH GOVZRIMENT AT WAR WITH FRANCE AND ENGLIAIND

In 1672, The Dutch Govornnment declarcd war
on Francce and England, Soon thercafter a treaty
was signcd with Englond but the state of war ox-
istod until tho ycar 1676.
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In July 1677, a famous French Admiral, "Do-
Estres” with & large fleet sailed from France
for Caribbean waters. The fleet lay at anchor
in the harbour of Martinique, a French posses-
- 8ion, for several months, and in May, 1678,
sajled against Curacao, His ignorance in navi=-
gation on the Caribb Sea resulted in running
his fleet aground on ¢ :;‘u#l:ﬂ at Aves, west of

Bonajre. Jpft behind
and with the rminﬁﬁf*tha flee Da-latraa
salled for San Domingo,

As soon a8 Donckner, then Governor of Cur-
acao, heard of De-Estres' misfortunc, he sailed
to the Aves Islands for the purpose of salvag-
ing arms and munitions from the ship-wrecked
vessels of De=Estres' Tflect, The voyage was
successful, history indicating that there were
brought to Curacac samo 55 pioces of heavy can=-
non, These canpnon wWore usod by thoe Dutch Gov-
ernment in Cumcao, ArMba, and Bommire for de=-
fonse purposcs until tho beginning of the 19th
contury. (Note: There is little doubt that
thoe cannon on the boach at the rmuins of Fort
William III 4in Oranjestad aro some of the same
pieces salvaged from the French fleet under the
cormand of Admirnl Do-Estros in 1678).

At tho time Donckner cquipped his salvage
flect, Jon Ereomus Roiming, o famous Dutch pir-
ntc, opcrated in Caribboan waters. In gonoral
the pirate Roiming mde himscolf very uscful to
tho Dutch Government, and gaincd o degroe of
protection through his service,

In 1713, a fleot of Fronch warships under
the command of Admiral Cassart visitod Caribbecan
woters, ond having coptured and burned thoe Dutch
colonics at Surinam, procecdod to Curacao., The
Dutch Colony ot Curacno Ind been wnrned of tho
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approach of Admiral Cassart, and Iimmediately
preparcd for his attack. After o desperate
fight, in which many of tho Dutch inhobitants
wore killed, tho Freuech landed, capturing Wil-
lomstad, the Duteh Colony, on Fobruary 8th, 1713.
Thoe French Comminder rostored the colony to the
Dutch Govornor only after having colloctod a
ransom of 115,000 Smanish pesos, An indication
of the wealth of Curacao at that time wma tho
faet that this sun was paid within 48 hours af-
ter Cnasart's domand,

Hollond mow roalized that the  ¢olonlos
wore not sufficiently protocted, and during the
following your coasiderable money wos oxponded in
fortifying the Island
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CUAACAC'S PROSPERITY SUFFERS REVERSES

During the year 1782, thoe French Reliof Ar-
my, after assisting in pgaining tic independonce
of the Unitod States under the commnad of Iafay-
cttc, ¢allod at Curacaoc. Upon the sigaing of the
poacc troaty botwoen Englond nad Franeco, Ilafay-
ottoc sailed for Franco,

At this time war cxisted between Englond and
Holland, also Frunce and England, With the inde-
pondenco of the United States, the peried of
prosperity for Curacao ended, due to the foct
tlnt during the Rovolutiomry Wor, Curacac had
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been a @urce of supply and trading post for the
American forces,. Business naturally shifted to
Boston, Hew York and Newport News,

In 1795 the West India Company dissolved.
Its charter was granted and signed by the SEVEN
UNITED NITERLANDS, After the Revolution of 1795,
and the formation of the Batavian Republic,which
existed until 1806, the Charter under which the
West India Company operated, ceased to exist,
Its possassions, by decree of the Batavian Repub-
lic were declared Crown Colonies,
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THE CURACAO SIAVE REVOIUTION

During the time of the French Revolution,
1791-1793, Revolutionary ideas of the French pen-
etratod to the French est Indics possessions,and
emancipated slaves from these colonies ontcred
Curacao, sproading propaganda emong tho blacks of
Curacao, AS & rosult, slaves rofuscd to work and
finnlly, in 1795, rovolted. Committecs wont to
the Coloniml Consul at iillomstadt, to plead
their cause, The main body of blacks, howcvor,
having broken into and Irobbed o rum distillery,
and whilc gloriously intoxicatod, doclered them-
solves free; "Liborty, Equality, and Fraternity®
boing their motto.

The plantation ownors fled to Willomstadt
for protoction, and the slaves helped thamselves
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to arms and munitions on the plantations and
marched toc the district known as Fontaine, which
is in the hills of Curacao, and there entrenched
themselves.

The Colonial Couneil, being at a loss for a
solution to the problem, sent the Roman Catholic
priest to their stronghold. He returned with the
message that if Holland did not liberate them as
France had done their slaves, they would break

bondage,

Operating from their stronghold, the slaves
burned and robbed the plantations and it was only
after the arrival of two Dutch war ships that
they were drivon back to their masters. By Sept-
exber of the same year, thoy wore back at worlk,
Although tho damage dono by them was considorablo
few white lives werec lost and as an oxample to
others, the ring leaders Toella Bastion and Pedro
Macoa, woroe hanged on crosses, thoir arms broken
above and below the olbows, und their logs brokeon
‘nbovc and below the knees, Their facos wore
burnod with torches beyond recognition. They
were thon baheaded, and thoir hoads exhibited in
public, The loft car of all other participanta
was sovered at 1its base, as an indication of
thoir absolute submission,
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ENGLISH RULE CURACAO, 1806 - 1815

In 1804 and 1805, the English mande numorous
attacks on Curacao, but each time werc ropellod.
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Due to the English Fleot being "Lord of tho Seas”
Curacao had to defend herself and roceived vory
little aid from Holland, It is therefore quite
ranarkoblo that the Duteh on the Island woere ablo
to withstand the reopeated attacks of the English
Floot which wns cver preosent in the Caribboan,

At aobout midnight on New Yoars Evc, 1806,
the English Fleet sailed up the harbor of Curme-
cap, ecapturing the +two Dutch warships anchored
there, and with little fighting coptured Williame
stad, " as the eantirc garrison wore out, at hamo,
or scattored about the city onjoying thamsclves.
Thore wvas practically no rosistanco,

The island of Curacao raminoed undor English
jurisdiction until 1815, the yooar of thc Pecco of
Paris, vhon it wms rostorod to the Duteh.

. Commorce which had beon doveloped by theo
Dutch thon diverted to St.Thomos, an English pos-
sossjon, duc to tho English Blockadeo designed for
that purpose, Undor Znglish dircectorship, tho
first nowspapcer wos published in Curacoo and it
may be of intcrost to know that this publication
still cxists - "The Curacao Courant,"(Aug.,1938),

The importation and sale of slaves bocame
unlawful in Curncao in tho year 1816,



BUCCANEERS OF THE SPANISH MAIN

During thc governorship of DuFfay, about the
yoar 1730, pirates roamed the West Indies, on-
dangoring tho commercc and weolfare of tho col-
onios, rovaging coost towns and shipping, Ac-
tive warfaro roged for many months in an cndcavor
to suppress tho ropeated attacks of pirates on
ships 1aden with rich cargoes of slaves and
prﬂ?iﬂinnﬂ.

At about this timec Balthamai Carrion, onc of
the boldost, raided Aruba, killing mombors of
the Govoermor's houschold., Also active was Juan
Antonio, Dios de la Rabbia (God of the Robels)
vho had his hoadquartcrs on the island of Bon-
girc; at times, whon hard pressed, he would go
into hiding in tho ecaves of Aruba, where ho
froquently cnlarged his plundor with cattle and
slaveos,

During omo of his raids, in 1736, he was
takon eaptive, brought to Curocno and promptly
hanged. A few wecks later Coarrion, who had
raided Aruba, wns taken eaptivo and also brought
to Curacao, After his bratal trecatment of the
Governor's fomily 4n Aruba, hc expceted no morey
at tho hands of the Dutch Military authorities,
and history indicates tint he roccived 2 warm
welcome ond was speedily put to death, The most
feoarecd pirate of the timo wos o Fraichman by tho
nano of D'Estrades, and it wans an occasion of
great joy to the colonists whon ho was brought
in in chains, and promptly ¢xecuted,

These continual sea and land skirmishes with
pirates occasionod great lossos in men, and tho
Governor proposed to build a hospitel for the
caro of wounded sailors, Funds werc raised by
public contribution and thc hospital was socon in
oporation,
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MONETARY SYSTEM

For centuries the monetary unit of Curacao
was the Peso of Eight (Pieces of Eight) having a
value of B reales, a Spanish coin then 1in use
throughout the West Indies,

During the yoar 1896,when there was & short-
age of silver coin, the Governor of Curacaoc or-
derced that the Picces of Eight be quartered, esach
portion having a value of Two Reales. In 1800,
the "Golden Doubloon" was introduced in Curacao,
having a value of 24 piecos of eisht. The "Gold=-
en Johanisson" was also used, bhaving a value of
90 recales or about 11,25 Piecos of Eight, The
weight of the Golden Johanisson was 22 carats of

purc pold,

In 1824 and 1826 all these coins weres con=-
vertod into Dutch Currcncy end zlthough fareign
coin was still wused oxtonsively, the basis of
exchange was the Dutch Florin,

In 1827, Curacao was declarcd a Free Port,
T™is was an endoavor to regain ite commorce which
had beon lost during the Napoleonie Era,
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CURACADO TODAY

Curacno, today, is one of the principal
shipping eamtoers in the llest Indies, It sorves
as a trans-shipping point to all West Indics Is=-
lands and to Cantral and South Amoriea. With
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tho ostablishmont of the "Curacaoschce Petroleum
Industrie”, which is part of the Shell Company,
Curacac s taken its place as ono of the import-
ant sea ports of tho world,

It has bocome o tourist center of considore
able note, being a stopping point for practically
all Caribboan cruises, including thosc made by
the largest liners., Its main shopping street is
famous orons tourists, and whon a cruise ship is
in harbor, the stores are filled to comeity with
hundreds of Amcriccns buying perfune, jowelry,
and mtive mndierafts gathered fronm oll parts of
the Cecribbean torritory nnd South America,

One of Curacoo's most noted oxhivits 1is the
woll-known pontoon bridge, a structurc ao long as
a city block, vhich pivots on ono ond as it is
drawn back by cablos to moke way for tankers and
froighters,

In topography and cven in shape Curacao is
vory similar to Aruba, It can bo scon plainly
from the south 1ighthousc on clear days when tho
tradoc winds dic down,
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THE PETROLEUM INDUSTRY OF VENEZDEIA

A propor undorstanding of the phonomonnal in-
dustrial growthi of the Island of Aruba roquires
at lenst a rudimentary knowledge of the history,
dovelopmont, and conditions poculiar to theo pot-
roloum industry in nocarby Venczucla,

In the Northwestern part of the Ropublic of
Vencaicla lics that section known to tlo oil in-
dustry as "Marceaibo lake Basin", This wvast ox-
panse of lond and water covering an aroa of ap-
proxiin tely 40,000 squure miles ovorlics whnt
may authoritics belicve to be tho largest dopo-
sits of crude oil knowvn to man, It is bounded on
tho south by tho Morida mountains ond on the wost
by the Perija Mountains, both of which Tranges
have poaks oxtending above tho snow line and have
slopes which fall awny rapidly to the low flat
plains cneireling the shorcs of Iako Maracaibo,
It takos in all the coastal plein oxtonding from
the Paraguangs Poninsulas on the Zast to the Goa-
jira Poninsula on the %Yost, Ioke Maracajbo it-
s0lf is5 in reality as almost landlocked gulf of
tho Caribboan and mokes possible transpartation
to practically every scction of the basin,

Although Inkc Ildaracaibo is, for tho most
part, sufficicutly dcop to permit mvigation by
occan going vessels, the presence of Zapara Bar,
which extends across the mouth of +the lako,
mlkos wtry of dcop dronft vossels inmpossible. In
ordor to overcomo this obstacle, tho oil compon-
iecs hove developed o sinllow-draft flat-bottom
lake tank ship for tho purpose of transporting
tho oil from tho mony ficlds of tho basin to
points whore it may be rofinod and ultimtely
loaded 4nteo oconu going tonkers, Practically
overy large producing company in the Basin opor-
antos a flcet of thesc lake tankors,
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Tho eity of Maracaibo is located on the woa-
torn shoro of the nouth of Lakoe Maraoeaibo and is
approximntoly 160 niles sailing di stance south-
wost of Aruba., It is the scecond largest city in
tiic Republie and, iusofar as the Potroloun indas-
try is concorned, 1is the nost impartant. In
fact, 1t is oftoa roforred to as tho oil eapital
of South Auwriea, Population is ostimtod at ap=-

Facts surrounding the original discovery of
0il 1in Inke Maracaibo Basin are vaguc, and are
clouded with many ccuflictine roports. It is ro-
cordod, hawever, that o eoncession was gronted an
orponjization known as tho Companie Potrolora del
Incliira in e yoor 1894 for the purposc of ox-
ploiting o1l doposits noar San Cristobal in the
State of Tachire which lios noor tho oxtrome sou-
thorn boundary of tho Basin, Petroloum was obe
tninod by mnmoans of shallow hand-dug wolls <and
scopngoe pits, and tlw produccers worc priacipally
intercatod in the dovelopmeont of an asphalt in-
dustry. Little furthor developncat is rocordod
until 1907 when the Roynl Dutch Shell was gront-
cd an extensivo concession ond bogon a progranm of !
explarotion of the Basin, It was not until 15910
that major produeing coupanios bozan to tako more
thaa a passive Iatorest 4in tle petroloun possi-
bilitios of Verozucla,

In 1912 tiw Berrmdez Canpany, a subsidiory
of Gonornl Asphalt Company of Philadelphin, cone
ploted a wildeaot woll in the Guanoco Ficld in the
Stato of Sucro in extrene Eastorn Venozuela near
what is now the Quiriquire ficld., Althouch this
discovory sorved to divert attontion fram the Ba-
sin for the noxt yecar, a wildeat produccr in the
Stato of Iora oa thoe BEnstorn ghore of lake Maro-
caibo opened up the ldeno Grande Fiecld in 1914 and
devolopnient of Iako Maraeaibo Basin was begun in
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carmmest, In 1915 the Caribbean Petroloun Conp-
any, o subsidiary of Roynl Duteh Shell, oponed
tho Totumo TFicld on fthe Wostorn shore of the
lake in the State of 2Zulia aobout fifty niles
from the city of Maraeaibo. lLoecal intorests
later brought suit apadnst the Shell for their
property in this ficld end pnined posscssion
througch a supreic court decision, Holdins in
the fivld were tlen 80ld to the Croole Syndicate
which was lntor acquirod by tho Standard 01l
Company of Vemeozucla, which is a subsidiary of
Stendard 01l Commny of Now Jersay.

The next discovery well of importance was
the Venemuclan 011 Concessions' (Royal Dutch
Shell) Toldo No. 1 in the State of Zulia on the
southwestern side of thoe Iake. This Dbecame
known as the Tarra Field, In 1917, the Caribbe-
an Potroleum Company discovered the Misoa Field
in the District of Sucre, State of Zulia. The
ILaRosa Ficld, one of the lorgest producing areas
of tho entire basin, was also discovered in 1917
by the Venezuclan 0il Concessions, It was in
the laRosa Field that the T.ﬂ.ﬂ. drilled in the
well which is ganerally considercd to bave been
the largest producer in the contire Maracaibo
Iako Basin, The Los Barroso lo, 2 camc in Doc-
embor 16th, 1922, and flowed until Docembor 25th
at an estimtod rate of 100,000 barrcls per day,
During the nino days of its lifec it is estimted
to lmve produced onc million barrals of oil, The
IaRosa Ficld is located on the Eastern shores of
thoe lake in the Distriet of Bolivar approximnte-
ly twenty-fivo milcs fram the city of Maraenibo,

During the moxt ton yoars discovories of
new ficlds followed upon the hecls of one anoth-
er until Iake Moroccaibo became procticzlly sur-
roundod with producing areas. Tho year 1926
marked thoe discovery of the Ingunillas, Punta
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Bonitez, and Ambrosio fields, The discovery woll
of the lagunillas ficld wae drilled by tho Vene-
Zucla Gulf 0il Company in Moy 1926, and since
that datce the ficld hns acoounted for almoct fif-
ty porecent of tho oentiro production of loko Moro-
eaibo Basin. It is loecated on the vastern shoro
of tho lake opproximtely sixzty miles south of
the eity of Maracaibo,

Sinco Vonczmucla, 28 a producer of crude oll,
ns ranked with the first throo mitions of tho
world faor the past twelve yoars, it is obvious
that sho has kad to look to tho balanee of the
world for o mrkot for hor production. By 1924
tho problom of shipping the rapidly incrocsing
production frmmn ILake Meracoibo o vworld mriccts
was booonming acute. Most of tlo lirgor prmoducing
commnics bogon casting about for suitable docpe
water tomimls for loding tho oil into ocoan=
going vesscls, Tho oconstruetion of the apall
shnllow=araft lake tonkors, mentioned olscwhore
in this chnpter, was boegun, Thoso littlc baats
golved the problam, insofar as going into tho
lake and transporting the crudo dircet fronm tho
ficlds wms concorned, but deop-witcr tomainals,
whore tho Inke tankors night dischorge and store
thoir cargeos until it could be liftcd by ocoan=
@oing vosscls and transparted to othor parts of
the uorld, worc noccossary,.

Lying as thay do, Just outsidc the Gulfl of
Vanczuola in the Caribbean Soa, swrounded by
rnany fathoms of wator and with good lorbor possi-
bilitics, the Netlorlands Islands of Curncao and
Aruba wero possesscd of cll the physical attri-
butos nocessary for idoal stomago ond looding
tominals. Add to this a political rogino which
nikos largo scale investuents of foroign capital
towards industrial developmont appoar ontirely
safe and it is oasy to sce vhy both islands were
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solectod for important sites. Conturics of wisg,
forsightod and just govornnent have won for tho
House of Orange from its subjocts a loyalty and
lovo so great that any pussibility of a change
of goverunont is conmpletely outsido the realn of
camprehansion of the peopleo of Holland., This is
an impoartant considoration whon foroign copital
is considoring an investnont of millions of dol=-
lars £ industrial dovoelopment.

Considoring those things it is not surpris-
ing tmt in 1924 officials of the Pan Amorican
Potroloun Carporation (The E. L. Dohony Company)
arrived in Oranjostad and conplotod arrangononts
for o long torm lcasc of o scetion of the Island
of Aruba 1lying nt the cxtrome Southoast ocnd of
tho Island,

In anothor scction of this book you will
follow the groat and rapid industrinl dovelop=
ment which followed,
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ARUBA

Aruba, one of six Dutch possessions in the
#west Indies, is located about twenty miles of f the
northern coast of South America, the nearest point
being Cape San Roman on the peninsula "Paraguana”,
Venezuela, The geographic
location of the island is 70° 3* 30" WL and 12°
27 25" NL, being about fourteen miles at its
lorngest point and about seven and one-half miles
at its widest point, and containing about one hun-
dred square miles of territory.

At times, when the sky is clear and the sun

brilliant, the peninsula and Paraguana Mountain
can be seen plainly outlined on the harizon, and

occasionally long stretches of moumtains can be
seen along the Venealelan coast to the east.

Alonso Ojeda, a Spaniard, after leaving Cur-
acao in August 1499, landed =at Cape San Roman,
Venezuela, History does not definitely indicate
that he actually landed in Aruba, but being 8o
near the coast it is belisved that he did and the
honor of discovery has becn bestowed on him,

The laland is formed principally of several
varieties of white cornl, granite, and pro-
historic wvolcanic lava, Tho entire length of its
leoward side is fringed by rcefs, and adding to
its air of the tropics are tho dozens of palm
groves seatterocd over the west half of the island.
Trmde winds blow from the northeast throughout
nine months of tho yoar, and the cast eud Ims beon
swopt cloar of soil, leaving only bare sharp coral
over most of the arca, Thus aside from the hardy
cactusa, most of the vegotation that survivee from
onc rainy scason to tho next is concentrat>d in
tho westward holf of the island, which holds 2
partion of the soil blown onto it,
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A range of hills extends aldmg the norsh and
northeast coast bending to the simh, e higies¥
point on the islapd is Yamanota, 560 fee® above
sea level, The coast alomg the south and south-
west is low, and a? places is belew sea level,
The southern tip of the island eand® In a promon-
tory of ¢liffs that rise appreximately 130 feet
above the Sea,

At Daimari the farce of the waves as so under-
mined the coast that a grotto has been fomed
and white vapor from the waves éan be scen rising
out ef the ground about one hundred and twenty
yards frem the shors. This rescmbles the "Hato
Cave" in Curacao,

The island is divided into four provinces,
the first, known as "Playa", includes the capitol
"Oranjestad", located on "Paardenbaai" (Horses
Bay). Up to tho end of the Eighteenth Century,
the administrative offices were locafed on Com-
mnder's Bay (Sabancta) when in 1796, Governor
Je. R, lauffer moved his officos to the village
which md sprung uwp on Paardenbani, Up to this
time the willage had not been nmmed, boing kmown
as "Playa”, A small fort was milt on Paarden=-
baai (Fort William III) and in 1830, the Governor
of Curacao, on an inspection trip to Aruba, named
the capitol "Oranjestad", 4in honor of the Royal
House of Orange in Holland,

"Paardonbani"” (Horses Bay) obtained its name
thra the landing of hundreds of harses from the
Spanish Main, It is indicated tnt the horses
wero reshipped to Jammica.

Noord is sitwmtod in the Sccond district.In
the third are located Santa Cruz and Balashi,
while Sabanoto, and San Nieholns are located in
tho Fourth Provinec, These arc the principal in-
habited villagos. All land is Governmont ownod,
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and is lJoased to land holdors.

Tho principal automobile road oxtonds from
San Nicholas to Oranjestad. Bordering the road,
ot numrous intervals, 1is found the sisal plant,
which, while much taller, groatly resambles the
Century Plant and is ofton mistoken for it. Most
of the island is traversed by ronds of varying de-
groes of passability; among the most pleasant of
the drives is tho trip from Santa Cruz to Fontaine
across the "continun tal divide™; the ronds to Andi-
cura, Bushiribam , and the north lighthousc also
yicld istorceting scencs,

Necar Balashi, at the head of the Spanish
lagoon, is the "Rooi Francos" (Fronch Pass), and
whilc no historical mention is mmnde of tho inci-
dent, thore is a deoply-rootod local tradition
saying that at this point soveral hundrod French
soldiers were ambushed amd killed duwing ow of
the Fronch invasions,

Amba, udor Spenish rule until 1634, was in
that ycar takon ovor by the Vest India Commny, a
Dutch Trading Company, with hoadgquertors in Rot-
terdam, by right of conguest, The island was then
left to ite own fate, more or less, due to tho
oxtrome difficulty of maintaining regular communi-
cation botwoen Curaczo and Armuba, The
Hest Indin Commny, howover, gmntoed permission
to a choem fow to sottle axd cngage in commorece
on the Island. History indicates thaot Moscs Van
Salomon Lovi Maduro was the first foreigner por-
mitted to scttle in Arubo, aond following is the
oath ho was obliged to execute on June 7, 1754,
to obtain this right:

"PROCLAMATION OF 1754 - CURACAD ARCHIVES"
"You, Moscs Van Salomon Lovi Mnduro, swoar:
live as a tmustwarthy citizon, oboy ond scrve the
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Commonder at all times, and will remain loynl to
the Nobel Compny; that you will not, in any way
trade, s8soll to, or buy anything from forcignecrs,
and the't you will immedis tely roport any propos-
als to buy ar sell. Furthar, you will report to
thoe Comandor, anything you may bear concerning
en uprising against tho Island. The land placoed
in your ecaro, by the gracc of thoe Nobel Commuy,
will be cultivated, but you will not dmmoge,
transfer or scll same. Your heirs will live on,
work, and onjoy tho profits thorcof, it boing un-
dorstood that in the ond the lInnd will be roturn~-
cd to tho Nobel Communy.

"SECOND: You will not construct an cnclos-
urce for your cattlc without the knowlodgo and
consont of the Cormandor.

"THIRD: Should you, in any way, not fulfill
the conditions of the present, the Commmnder snll
have full suthority toc dopart you from the Iasland,
taking over, without fomnlity and as a possossion
improvemant s mde by you."

It is imteorcsting to know that tho Tirst
fareign sottlor of Aruba was a mumber of the md-
uro family of Curacao, vho aro, today, ono of the
richest and most powerful on tio Islamd of Cura-
Cho .

The language known aos "Papiamento™ spoken in
Arubn, 1is o blcnding of Spanish oud Portuguese
int arlarded occacionally with Dutch, Freuch, and
Eglish wards., A poculior thing about the "Pat-
ois"™ is that it s no fixod grammatic rules and
it ms beon developed nnd adapted by the m tives.
Popiamento, o8 spokon in Armubn, cootoins more
Spanish than tho patois of Bounaire and Curacao.

The arigin of the name "Amuba" is doubtful.
Somo beliove thot the mme is, in some muaner,
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connected with the discovery of gold on the is-
land. Early historians mention the names "Orus®
and "Oruba"™ which are possibly derived fram the
Spanish ™Oro Hubo"™ meaning "There was Gold".

Others believe that the mame mmy have been de-
rived from "Oirubai" of the Guiarani Indian dia-
lect meaning "Guide", since gold was not discov-
ered for mme time after the island was named.

Of the three windward islands, Curacao,Bon-
aire and Aruba, the best evidence of the early
Indian inmbitants is found in Araba, Execellent
specimens of the early hieroglyphics are still
to be seen in places kmown as "Ayo" and "Piedra
Plata™, Also, such early implements &3 stone
lmtchets, tamyhawks, etc., are froquently found
in Aruba, A number of vaselike tombs leve been
found in Aruba, which are in the National
lusoum in Rot terdam, Holland.

EEEsaAsSE B EB B



ARUBA'S INDUSTRIES, PAST AND PRESENT

GOLD MINING

In the year 1725, a Norwegian miner, Paules
Printz, was sent by the West India Company to
Araba to investigate the bolicf that mimerals
wore to be found there, IHc wus, however, TO=
called befarc his investigations were completo.,
Otherwise, he would probably have mede the dis-
covery at that time, Lotters cxclingoed bDetwoon
Printz and the GEITLELEN XIX give proof tiat he
had strong suspicions that motallic ore existeod
in Aruba.

Gold was located in June, 1824, and on Aug-
ust 4th, the Governor of Curacao, Cantzlaar, his
Adjutant, Capt. Van Radcrs, his Secretary, W,
Prince, Ceaptain of a Corps of Enginecrs F, Ab-
bring, the Commander of the Military Guard J, F,
#. Gravenhorst, a Scrgeant, two Corporals, and
twenty soldiers Innded in Aruba,

Prior to this time the military forces sta-
tioned in Amuba oonsisted of & junior officer
of the Dutch Military Farces as Comandor, two
horsemen and two foot solélers,

The discovery of gold soon brought the is-
land of Aruba to tlhe fareground. The first ore
was found to be alluvial Gold, washed 'from the
sand beds of the water courses along the West
Coast, Iator, primry gold was located in
qunrtz gallories, In the quurtz wns a hard
white miioral. The gold was 80 finely mixed
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that at times the sprinkling could not be seen

and its existence could only be esatablished by
smelting, while at times, 1t was in veins and

fine leaves. Nuggets "Palitas" have also been
found; the largest is said to have weighed 6.425
Netherlands pounds. A cast of this nugget 1s

to be found in the museum at Laiden, Holland.

The Dutch Govermment maintained control of
the Gold Industry of Amaba until 1832, wup to
which time several hundred pounds of Pure Gold
had been extracted and shipped to Holland,

During this year, by decrce of the Dutch
Government, mining became lawful for all in hab-
jtants of Aruba,

Seemingly the gold industry in Aruba was
never very successful, A concession granted to
1. J. de Llong in the IHague for a period of forty
years was withdrawn in 1866. In 1867 the con-
cession was gronted to Frapeisecus JIsola for
thirty-five years. Again in 1869 the concession
was tronsferred to Messrs., Rickets & Co., of New
York,which company in turn sold their rights to
the Aruba Gold Mining Commny in 1872, This com-
pany also did not succeed and in 1900 turned its
concession over to the Government,

In 1908, a now company was formed "“Aruban
Goud Mantschappij". This firm was the first to
male & success of tho industry and during the
first yoar it paid a 25% dividond and up to 1910
had prid dividends to the stockholdors amounting
to over S50% of the initial ifmvestmont,

The secrot of the success of this Company
was attributed to the "Tributers Systom."” Tho
actual mining was left to the land holders who
brought thoir quartz to the amelting plant and
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whon a paying quantity of gold was found in tho
quartz, the minor was paid for it accordingly.

With the advent of +the daily wage scale of
labor to Aruba with the ostablishmont of tho
Dutch Shell refinory ot Oranjostad, this system
of mining ecould no longer be oporatcd and tho
projoct was abandoned.

The ruins of the old gold smelting plants are
still to bo seon ot Balashi, midwoy boetwocn OSan
Hicholas and Oranjostad, noar the "Rooi Francais"
and at Bushiribana on tho north west coast,whore the
cnormous stonc walls rcscmble prehistoric mopumonts.

PHOSPHATE MINING

The phosphate minos weore located at Corro
Colarndo, the oxtreme Southeast point of the is-
land. In the year 1874, phosphato was discovercd
by J. H. ¥ator Gravenhorst, and the «ruba Phos-
phate Montschappl] was rﬂunrlad in 1881. History
montions thmt during the first fourteon yoars tho
Government roceivod, up to the ond of 1895, Fls,
2,000,000.00 in oxport duty. This would i::niiuatﬂ
that during the <first 14 ycvars of operation,
250,000 tons of phosphate wore exported.

Phosplato was found in layors somtimos as
mach as twenty foot thick, and was shipped from
San Nicholas, Transportation from the minc to

=26~



the loading pilor was over a narrow gauge trock in
twonty cor trains drawn by a light locomotive.

Statistics indicate thnt from 1881 to 1909,
a poriod of 28 yoars, 742,561 rogistercd tons of
Phosphato wore oxported from San Nicholas to
France, England, and Amcrien, which containced an
average of 70% phosphoric acid.
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ALOES FOR THE WORLD

From the period of Alexander the Great in
333 B.C. to modern medical practice in 1938
A.D. - thus from ancient times to the present
stretches the long history of Aloes; and for
more than one hundred years the most important
part in that history has been ployed by a tiny
Caribbean Island, Aruba, 7ith an area less than
that of Kanhattan, ~ it exports approxim tely 76k
of the total world's supply of Aloes,

Al though they are ome of the oldest natu-
ral sources for medicinals, Aloes are grown on o
comnmercial scale in but few places besides Aruba,
Wwith cxception of several parts of Jdestern Af-
rica, Venozucla and the neighboring Dutech
islands of Curacac oand Bomaire, which togothor
produce the balance of world supply, Aloes aro
grovn commercially nowhere c¢lse in ths world.
The entire pmoduction of Aruba's Aloecs is ox=
ported far rofining, more than throe-fourths be-
ing sold to large manufacturers of pharmiccuti-
cals in the United States, the rominder being
shippod to England and, in lossor quantities, to
Europe, o

An oxchange exists for tho sale and pur-
chase of raw Aloes, classificd in trade as a
gum, and its refincd derivative Aloin ( pro-
nounced like "hallowcen" without the "h") mueh
like thnt for othor comoditios in world com-
merce, and their mrket pricos fluctuate simi-
larly nccording to supply and domnd, 595,000
pounds of the raw Alocs gum was oxported from
Aruba during 1937, dostined principally for con-
vorsion to an ingrodient for catharties. Chomi-
en]l annlysis of Alous guns has shown an avoragoe
Aloin content of 18-20% for tho varicty producod
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in Aruba, as campared to 10-12% for that of
other wvarictiecs, accounting probobly for the
prcferonco shown in world markots for thoe Aruba
product, Aloca gua ocarrcntly is quoted at a
prico ranging fron 30 to 35¢ por pound, although
in rocent yoars it has fallca as low as 6¢ per
pound duc to bumpor c¢rops. Rofined Aloin is cur-
rontly quoted at about $2.40 por pound,

180 specics of Alocs plants have boen
clanssificd, sonc roaching o hoight of Tive foet.
0f thoad, tarce Iinmportant wvarictics only are
usod to supply the Aloin of prescant day com-
nerco; namcly, Capo, Curacac and Socotrino. Ac-
cording to botanists, tho latter vorioty appoars
to have buon the originsl, it first having been
found on tho island of Scocotora noar tho wost
African const. Aruba's Aloes worce first brought
by sailing ships ocarly in the nincteonth ccatury
from Socotorn by Duteh .Jest 1Indics coleonists.
The prosout wide distribution over the cntire
island has rosultod alnost sololy from tho nat-
ural prmupagation of thie plants, With noro noar-
ly porfoet climtic conditions for the growth
of Alocs with thc highest Aloin coatont than
anywhura clsc, Amiba ms mmdo thueir cultivation
its mjor source of rovonue from naturl ro-
sourcces, Exactly tho proper amount of tropie
sunshino tmpored by the trode winds, cool
nights, intcrnitteat rains during throo months
of thoe year and a sea lovel so0il suitod to its
noods all combine to make Aruba's Alocs thrive
atundantly, with 1little or no altivation bo-
yond periodiec raovel of moisturce absorbing
woeds from thoe fidlds,

The Aruba or Curacao varioty of Alocs is
a ruggedly strong plant averaging 12 inches in
hoight and growing in a stomless clustor of
thick, floshy, juico-filled lcaves with sharp
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tips and spinod cdges. Varying in color from a
yollowish grecn +to derk umboer brown, depending
on thoir age, the plants grow solidly covering
the fields, Donse clusters of small, tubular-
shaped flowers are bome ot long intorvals, How-
ovor, the flowers do not produce secds for pro-
pagntion, reproduction boing offccted by moans
of now plants sprouting fram shoots or runnors
put ocut at tho botton of the elustor,.

Extraction of thoe juico from the loaves
and its preparation for oxport is one of tho
major sources of native Arub.as' incones, neny
avoraging 7 to §9 a day during the harvesting
soason, whieh extends from early Merch to lato
in Oetobor. The leaves orce cut from near tho
basc of tho plant with a short knifo. Care must
bo taken to cut them at an angleo as Iinproper
ceutting rosults in the plant's dying. Placod
cut end dovn in long, tiltod wooden troughs
blnckoncd by years of scrvice, tho heat from
the sun causcs the leaves to exude their thick,
pungontly odorous juice, which is dripped from
the lowor cnd of tho troush into a roecptaeclo.
Collocetod in the ficlds by boys on donkoys, tho
frosh, lamon-yollowr Juico 4is pourcd into smll
covered woodon tubs and carricd, ono on cagh
sido, to a ocuntra)l shod wiwre 1t is stored in
large vats or druus. In ocarly tincs thoe vater
catont of the fresh Alocs juice was ovaporatod
sinply by filling shocp or goat skins with the
fluid and cllowing thon to hang in tho sunahine
for o month or more. The handling of it todoy
has changed little from that primitive method
beyond spocding up the covaporation by boiling,
After a sufficiont amount has boen collected and
allowed to scttle out bits of leaves, dirt and
othor foroigi mttor, tho transparent liquid is
poured into a great coppor cauldron with a capa-
city of 40 to 50 gallons, and a wood fire is 1it
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undor it. * After 12 to 14 hours of coatinuous

boiling, all of which timo it is stirred with o
long-handled ladle to prevent its boiling over,

the liquid becomcs pitch black and cumpletely

opaquc. It is thon landled into paper-linod boxcs
of a uniform size and cooled to the heavy con-
sistoncy of warm asphalt, Aftor being wrappod
in burlaop, thc 125 1lb. Dboxos arc carted to onc

of tho several dealers' warehouscs in Orangestad
the cogpital e¢ity, where the scason's ylold is
stored rcady for export by freighter. By comb-
ining into smll camunity groups, the Alocs far-
mors, cach with an cqual investmont in a common
boiling dopot, arc able to prepare their gun for
market with a minimum of cost. Tho less affluent
natives unable to share in thoe investment pay o
amall foe for the use of the boiling cquipmont,.

Mony attompts hove been mnmade to find a
chomical substitute for the proportics poculiar
to Alcin in its mm jor use as o cathartic in-
grodient, but nonc has so far been discovored.
And Arubans hope that none over will be found,
for it has provided a principal means of liveli-
hood for genarations of funilies who have worked
in the Alocs fields for o living.
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ARUBA'S WEATHER

In the history of a community whose weath-
er plays such a pleasantly perfect part, it
would be unthinkable not to devote a chapter
to Aruba's climmte. The glorious year-round
gunshine and even temperature, and the cool
never-failinz breezes Mave placed Aruba high
up on the world's 1list of pleasant regions.

Like most tropical countries, there is a
wet and a dry season. Iarly during the con-
struction days of the Refinery, it was learned
that what are known in the States as the win-
ter and spring months; i, e., Janwmry to Juns,
were Arubats dry season, Statistics kept at
the Research Iaboratory have established this
fact. Figures provided by this department show
March to be the driest month 1in eight years
from 1930 to 1937 4inclusive, Three years of
that period there was no rainfall at all during
March. But ever the same period, December had
the highest average rainfall, with November,
1932 topping the highest individual monthly
fall with 9.71 inches, During that particular
November, there occurred a three-day storm,with
the wind, shifting from East to South, reach-
ing near-hurricane velocity. Rain fell incess-
antly and was lashed by the gale through bunga-
low louvres, which on the south side seldom had
been wet befare, and were not water tight.
Buckets anl bath-towels were neccessary to catch
the water vhich, in many cases, blew the entire
width of the bungalow rooms exposed to the
storm, It was during that storm that the El-
ectrical Department leerned they would lmve to
take precautions against floods, hitherto deem-
od unnecessary in Aruba, Lines were blown down
and circuits flooded, throwing the Colony into
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darkness for ono entiro night. Natives declared
the storm to beo most unusual, Nothing like it
has been expcricneed sincc.

As a matter of fact, climtic conditions
approxime ting anything which might be described
as a storm, do mnot oceur in Aruba except at
long intervals, and them are not of scrious nat-
ure, During thc past fow ycars Aruba folt two
glight carth tremors, roparted to be tho rosult
of disturbances tho eontor of which wwre noar
the Veneczuelan const., And just to prove Aruba's
climmtic worsatility, a watorspout pessocd
over tho Colony otrly onc morning in tho fall
of 1937, 1t whirled fences and plants up into
the air, twisting gumges out of shape, and
doing othor slitht demago -- all within fif toen
minutes which it rcquircd to pass over tho is-
land, Thoso freak visitations arc morely tho
cxcoptions proving the rule thot Amila has
grade A woathor almost continuocusly,

Araba, with 4its corul for.ntion offoring
perfect drainnge, may be said to be at its bost
during thc rainy scason., Vegcotation rosponds
guickly to the showors, and the islind assumes
a bright grecen aspect, vhich rom ins for scvor-
al months after the daily mins mvoe coasod to
foll. The avorage roinfall over a yoar is
about {iftcen inchos, with tho groentor mrt of
this folling botwcon Octobor and Jamniry., Usa-
ally tho rains como in short huavy downpours,
dropping out of low clouds shich the strong
winds blow aeross thce island at a rapid mteo.
The reaalt is bright sunshine within a few min-
utes after a hoavy downpour, Or vice vorsa.

The aveorage tamperature in Aruba 4is about
85 dogrees., Surf bathing mmy be indulged in
with perfoet camfort tho yooar rounds Picnics
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aro planned and cnjoyed at almost every scason
nf the yar, without a thought boing givon to
weather., Scldom aore the picnickers disappoint-
ed on account of roin,
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THENTIETH CEITURY BUCCANEERS
The Episode Of Junc 8, 1929

In Vonozucla, a state of nrest oxisted and
hundreds of dissatisficd ecitizens left Voncz-
uela, secttling in Cwracao, Aruba, and Bomire
whoero they truined and plonned for a rovolution
against tho Vonczuclin GCovornment., Tho Duteh
Bural Polico intorvuned, and in 1928 Goneral Ur-
bim wos taken from Amaba to Curacao and detain-
od in the fort ot the watorfront as o political
prisonor,

During the tine of his imprisommont there
he mde a carcful study of the moutinc of tho
Dutch unldiers. Aftoer being confined for scvor-
al months, ho was rologascd and sunt back to Voo~
czwl .

On satuwrday ndght, Junc 8th, 1929, at 9:15
P.l., threc tmucks loonded with armed Venozuclans
forcod cntmneco ond drove thm thoe gates of tho
Fort, This fart scrvos as hoadquertoers for the
Coloninl Military Policc, tho only armoed body of
mm in Curocao. Beforc the polico rcalized vhat
was toking placo thoy woro trapped. The attack
was woll organizod and in a few minutcs the fort
vas vndor the control of the Vonozuolans., —Thoy
gaincd accoss to theo arsonal, and ranovoed all arms
and munitions.

Although rosistance was futile, thorc wore
individunl cas¢s of wvalor, Throe mon weore kill-
od and o seorc marc or less scriously wounded,
The Military Commandcr, Captoin Barran, arrived
at tho Fart 2nd wos promptly taken prisomor,
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Within twenty minutes,thc Venozuelons wore
in complete cammand of the City. The wireless
station and cable office wore guarded. The Von-
ezuw lone provented the personncl of the Dutch
Shell Rofinery from assisting the Government by
virtue of their throat to bambard tho tank farm.

General Urbim, 4in communicating with the
Dutch Govornor, dananded his cooperation to pre-
vont further bloodshed. HNo damage wis dono to
private or publie property. The roason for tho
rcid on Curncao by the Vamozwlaus was the con-
fiscation of nll arms and cmaunition in tho Fort
to oquip the rovolutionists in Voaozudla,

Tho Amprican Red "D"™ Lincr "Moracoibo™ was
seized, The Governor, the Hilitary Comminder
and all of Genural Urbima's men marched aboard.
At the point of boyonots, Gonoral Urbina's mon
attonptod to forec tho crew of the "Moracaibo®
to 2211 for Vouozucla, but it wos only aftor
Covornor=-Gemeral Vor Fruyther issucd an order
tho "Marceaibo" sailod for Venozucla, landing
Urbina and his mon, togothar with their stolen
cargp, oalong the dosortod coast of Vonezwela,
noay Cumrcbo,

Dimedin tody after General Urbina ond his
rovolut ionists wero sct ashorc, the "Maracaibo"
was roleased and returned teo Curacao with tho
Govornor and tho Military Commander on boord,
unhnrmod.

The situntion in Venozuolo remaincd scrious
for suac time cnd Caribbean waters off tho
eoast of Amaba, Curacao and Bonaire, Werc con-
stantly patrolled by dostroyors of the Royal
Dutch Havy.

LR N
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GEOLOGICAL STUDY OF ARUBA

During tho sumer of 1930, Professor Goorge
S, Corfisld, of tho School of Goography, Clark
Univursity, liorcoster, Massachusctts, wisitod
Aruba, Shortly aftor Profossor Corficld's de-
parturc, tho PAN-AUBAN rocoived the following
artiele on Aruba, which was publishod at thnt
timo:=-

wiithout doubt Aruba camo into cexistencc as
a recsult of voleanic activity, but, as far as I
sco, tho ovidencc diserodite tho idoa tint it
ovor was a voleino in itsclf, It ;:ight bo part
of a rim of a crator, tho rest of which 1lios
dooply sulmurged to the northward, Since thore
are no pro-quurtermry fossils, it is aifficult
to sot the date of its first aoppoarancc. How-
cvor, it scams reasombdle to conncet it with the
pericd whoo tho great ehnin of Rocky and Andos
Mountains was uplifted, Tfoldoud and faultoed into
grondor pecks tharn cvem now exist. Subscquontly
_at a great deprossion of the carth's crust, tho
Caribboan 2nd othur scas were formed. It is to
this puriod thot Aruba's history as an island
bogins, Duw to minor mwamunts lator, Aruba has
appoargd to riso out of the soc at - throo timos
as giown by the shore lincs conspicuous in t‘nn
northerm and castera scetions,

"The gronito bouldors distributed ovor tho
island aro the result of woatinring. Duc to the .
rosistant qualitics of tho rocks mny havo takon
on puealinr and fontastie shapos. Hoolberg, the
most conspicuous, yot not tho highest, poak on
tho islond, is thu romlt of this difforontial
woathoring on o Xargo secleo. Tho tup @f this
pock my bo the last rommant of tho formor sur-
faco of the island,
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"Aruba is the driest of the islands of the
4est Indian group. COver a 24-year period the
average rainfall was 17,41 inches, It is inter-
esting to note one year when a little over nine
inches fell in 19 days of the year, the deaths
were three times greater than any previous year,
But give the Aruban the average rainfall and
with the steady wind, and healthgiving sun, he
can hold his own,

“The native has many qualities to be de-
sired, 1 was particularly impressed by his
kindness and gencrosity, I hiked over many
miles of the island and of newhere have I but
the pleasantest memories of our association, In
cultural liew Zngland, a stranger's requests are
given more attention if it is ovident that his
family tree wna used in constructing the liay-
flower, In Aruba, no questiouns werc askod,

miith the advent of refinorios on Aruba,
laborers have gravitated townrd them and left
agriculture in a lcss important etate than for-
merly, Also previously, in the home,women wove
straw hats to supplomeut what the husband could
earn, In 1920, straw hats to the value of Fls,
80,987,000 werc cxported from Aruba, while in
1929, after the refineries were well ostablished
this commodity had shrunken to Fls, 6,450,00
laborers carn u good wage at the rofinery which
is relatively safec and sure, This will result
in a higher standard of living." '



TRANSPORTATION

The goographical aloofness of Aruba mkos
transportation to and from the island a very
important and vital problem. frogress in this
respoct may, perhaps, be démonstrated best by
recounting the first trips to Aruba of the re-
finery's pionecrs, and comparing them with pre-
sont day facilities.

In the beginning, or duriag the .re-con-
struction days, it was necessary to rely chief-
ly upon sailing vessels if your destination was
Aruba, It was an uxpericace long to bo remem-
bercd by those who traveled Ly schooner, cither
from Curancao or from c Veiezuelau port. Accom-—
modations consisted of a little space on the
voessel's deck, where a passeuger sat during the
catire trip, endvavoring to keep out of the woy
of the erew, or the stray wuves which occasion-
ally broke over the bow and dock, A bit of can-
vas, part of an old sail, served as o cover un-
der which tho traveler slept during the long
night. ‘lhe best feature of the trip was down,
with a glimpse of /Tuba straight shcad, FPassenw
gers did not complain of +the mecals on those
schooners - there were no meels, although cof=-
fee was scrved at an early hour in the morniug
by o mess=boy - who well earued his title, How-
ever the bevermge wais ambrosinl to the trawveler,
but forgotten quickly wheu the breeze, stiffen~
ing as the day w, haélped the schooner into
the harbor.

Ouly an occasional small steamer put in to
Oraanjestad, but as the refiserios developed,
Aruba became o regular port of call Tfor the
Red D nud Royal Netherlcuds ships., With the
dredging of San iicolaas harbor, that port be-
ecame accessible to oil tankers, hen the con-
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struction of the Lago refinery got under way,
these oil ecarriers offered the principal means
for +trausporting the hundreds of employees
coming from the States,

From these early days of oil in Aruba,
Transportation has kept apace with other de-
velopmeuts, Throughout the world, Aviation
was making great strides forward during this
period, aud the realization of the benefits to
be derived from cir travel were quickly grosp-
ed by those in Aruba, Instrumental in bring-
iig the first airplane to Aruba was i, Viaus,
who 1in 1832 opcued a flying field on the out-
skirts of oGaa Nicholaas, A, J. TVicellio,
o troined aviotor frem Dellas, Texas ( sud at
prescit a pilot with KIid) was brought in with
a plaie. The uatiring efforts of Viana and
Vicellio to promote flyisg here fimlly euab-
lcd them to estoblish the first.rogular plane
sorvice which connscted Aruba aud Curacao by
air, For a period of niue mouths, as the
Caribbean Flying oJervice, they carried Hail
and Pnsscugers in their Loening Amphibien with
out o mishap between the two islands.

Duriug the latter part of 1933, KIM took
over this service, establishing & unew landing
ficld o short distance from Orazjestad, aund
equipping it in a thoroughly modern muuer,
Plane service has since been bettered from one
and two flights a week %o the proseut schedule
of sovoral planes each way daily. To this
Curacac-Aruba flight has been added Linracaibo,
at which port it is now possible to traus -ship
to the Pan American Airways for the United
S5tates, ‘This feature of 1938 has cut travel
time between MNew York and Aruba to 23 hours
from the eight or ten days required via tanker
ten yoars befoare vhen construct¥ion was first
started
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Another 1938 feature offored travolers to
and from aruba was the inauguration of weakly
calls of the Grace Iine steamers, These
Juxury liners represcut tie last word in com-
fort afloat, cid c trip on them is 2 wvacation
in itself for those employees leaving Aruba oa
thoir periodic visit to the States,

Intra-island <+trausportatioun should not be
omitted from the record of advancencut. The
o0ld higimway between oan Iicholecas and Oranjes-
tad, while picturesque, was so rough that those
who were forced to travel it hed little time
or fucliaation to eunjoy the scenic beauty thrm
vwhich thoy wore passicg, The old route follow-
od the watoer eclosely after leaving cal Nichol-
aas, possin, by the site of the prescat lebor
eamp, on to sabaauta, Deyoud this point the
early doys traffic jogged off to the north, and
woud its wiy through hills to the o0lé gold mine
buildiigs at Balashl gaud furued abruptly 1iato
Frouch Pagss, coutimming on to santa Cruz, and
arow.d Hoolberg to Oraujestad,

Inx the old days, cars were somewhat at a
proudunm, Taxi fares started at Ils. 8,00 for
the trip. Over an hour was .scessary to0 travel
the route comnfortably,

Duriig 153, the new coucrete highway wase
coustructed, beinug formally opened early the
following pyear, A bridge across the Spamusch
Iagoen shortened tho distance between the two
towns by miles, cuttiug the traveling time to
twenty or thirty minutes, The asmooth hard-sur-
faced highway proved a great attraction to mot-
orists., ‘Texis, of the statiou-wagon type, be-
gan to appear as if by magie., The rond was
filled with them. OSpeeding on the unew higlway
resulted :aturally, perhaps, as many drivers

iy ; .
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realized for the first time the power of their
motor on & good road. DBefore this condition
was checked, many fatal accidents occurred.
The road was widened, danger signels installed,

and every prenautinn is now taken to make tha
highway safe for all traveleras.

The principal streets of Oranjestad and San
liicholass have been hard-surfaced. Autamobile
licenses were formerly Fls. 80.00, but about
1934 they werse cut to the present price of Fls.

40.00 per year.



OIL COMES TO ARUBA

(Ed., Note: Up to this point the history
has carried us from the discovery of the Islands
and the early pirates, through the agricultural
and industrial development and to a modern geol-
ogical survey of aruba itself. Now wec come to
the alluring story of "black gold™, the advent
of oil, the birth of an era in these Ilelands
that eclipses all that has gone before., We can-
not guess the extent of its future influence
but, at this date, it has dons more to bring the
VWest Indies before ¢the eyes of the world than
was even dreamed of & short decade ago. It has
brought unexpceted wealth and distinetion to
those coral bound shoros. It is young in yecars
and many of the facts that will make future his-
tory ere common knowledge now, but the founding
of the industry in Aruba, the tricls and exper-
iences of the pionecrs, tho ultimato overcoming
of tho meny now and unexpoctod difficultics, tre
of undying interest, and so0 we have agked Mr.
B, J. Vavasour, of the Eogle Company, and Capt.
Rodger of our own Marine Dept., and Mr, D. 7.
Snith, who nceds no introduction, to give us the
history and highlights of the early developments
of the oil industry in Aruba. They consented
and the storics follow:)

"SHELL" SELECTS ARUBA FOR REFINERY SITE

Early in 1927, tho Roynl Duteh Sholl Com-

pany became interecsted in possible refinery
fitun on the Paraguans Peninsula and also Arubao.
after proliminary survey work it waos decided to
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ewrect & small topping plant mnear Druif at she
N.VI, corner of the island. The arend Petroleum
Company was formed, and Mr. R, W. F, Newton was
sent here from llexico and appointed Lanager., He
arrived in July, 1927, and was shortly afterwards
followed by Mr, C. J. Crawford, who was in charge
of the construction work, &and a few other pion-
eers, also from Mexico.

Humerous difficu'tiez had to be overcome
before construction rotlly got under ay. 4
wharf had ¢to be copegt.ucted on the inside of the
reef at Oranjested lor ih3y discharge of material,
accocznodations had to be found for the continual-
ly growing staff aril, pcrnaps the most difficult
problem of all, sriisbie food had to be procured.
In the very early dayc & good proportion of the
staff were housed in <he building which is now
known as the "Astoriac Clubiiouse™., This, although
supplemented by vurious hoses in and around the
town, soon proved inamffi+iept, and a number of
half timber, half canves hruses were erected
along the seashore ot the wfilery site and all
members of the ptalff wlc w ¢ unaccompanied by
their wives were moved into inese. At this time
the Company wos installod in temporury offices
in Nassaou Street and o Comissary was opened
clongside shortly afterwards. .

The aotunl construction of the refinery conm-
monced in Septomber, 1927, and, soon after, a de-
tachment from tho Chicogo Bridge & Iron Works,
under the supcrvision of Mr, "Bat" Nelson - whose
nomo will be familinr to many Pan-Arubanites -
errived to build the tanks. Work copntinued with-
out any more than the usual minor difficulties
boing encountered thru into 1928, during which
time tho Company had moved its offices to the
refincery site, and early in May the plent was
practically completed. Mr, Crawford, having
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terminated his shore of the work, left - incid-
entally to build ancther refinery for Shell in-
tereste in Buenos Aires. In June, 1928, the
first shipments of crude were recoived from
lagunillas and +the operation of the plant com-
monced. However, due to tho fact that the con-
tractors for the whaorf hod had continuous trou-
ble with their skilled labor from Holland, this
had not by thoen boen comploted and for some
1ittle time it wus necessary to effect all
movement of oll betwecen tankors and shore thru
pipelincs lald across bargos. The trouble was
finally solved by thoe contractor sending his
laborers back to Holland and the construction
of the wharf was completed by the Arcnd Com-
pany's own staff in September, 1928,

Three loke tankers, oach with a capacity
of approximately 18,000 bbls. wore scnt out
from ZEnglond and hove been in regular servioce
betwoen Lagunillos and Aruba since May, 1928,

Construction of the Refinery Colony was
started 4in 1928, and the housos werc cceupiod by
the latter end of thaot year, The Club House
has since beon enlarged, roade built and the
housee fenced in, Two concrete tennis courts
were laid down and o smell but very gporty golf
course is now opon near the hospital, Quite
rocontly the London office authorizoed & grant
to the Company to help with the building of a
sports fiold npeoar the Colony. A bathing boach
has also been fitted up with huts and diving
pletforms.

Mr. Newton remainocd 4in charge wuntil BMarch,
1930, whon he was loaned to the Mexican Eagle Gil
Company for the construction of @ refinery in
Moxico City. Hc was rolieved here by Mr. J. A,
Toubkin, who remcined until Januory, 1931, when

ha left to go on leave preparatary to toking
-
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over the Manogership of the Moxico City plant on
its completion. After Mr, Toubkin's departure,
bMr. B. J. Vavoasour, chief eongineoer, took over
the Manogorship. Tho work in Mexico City having
boen campleted, Iir. H, W, F, Nowton returncd to
Aaruba in December, 1931.

During 1929, o smell hospital undor the
charge of Dr., A. F, Dusscnbrock, was built and
fully cquippod on o property noarby the Com-
pany's concession. This ot presont has occom-
modations for 16 paticnts nominally but is cap-
uhla}ﬂr taking more, if nccessary. (Written in
1932



SAN NICHOIAS HECQMES OIL TRANSFER TERMINAL

(Bd. Note: The advent of the Lago Compan-
ios morked the beginning of & now orc for Aruba,
an era thot was destined to make this little
Island one of tho most ALmportant shipping cen-
ters among the many that dot the Caoribboon Sca
from Floridea and the Gulf of Mexico ocast and
south to South smorica, 4And who 4is in Dbetter
position to give us the story of the transfom-
ation of San Nicholas Bay and this end of the
Island than Capt. R. Rodger? In his ownm words:)

In the year 1924, there was an operoating
company 4n Lake Maracaibo ecalled the PBritish
Equatoricl 04l Company and in that year, the
Company sold out its rights to tho Iago Potro-
leum Corporation, who immediately increased thelir
holdings. At the time 4t took over the British
Equatorial 0il Company, the Logo wms really o
producing oompany in Lake Maracaibo but had no
moans of moving 1its oil othor than by selling
to outside compunies. Tho Lago's first objectiw
when it took over the British company was to ob-
tain the necessary small vessels to tronsport
crude oil of its own production from Lake Mara-
caibo and about July of that yoor the two amall
ships 8S, "Francunion" and SS, "Inverampton"” were
sont out .from England to inaugurate the oil
transportation sorvice.

In the mnﬂﬂtimﬂ| cﬂpt‘r Rﬂ'dsﬂr and Mr. J. 0.
Boyd woroe sont out by the company which then own-
ed the Lago Potroleum Corporation to ondeavor to
gocure n terminnl in Cupacno, Paroguano, sAruba,
or any other suitable place., In July of 1924,
Capt., Rodger end Mr. Boyd wore joinod at Curnrao
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by Cept. W. Clark, now of the Venezuelan Gulf O0il
Company at Maracaibo but then associated with the
Lago. Their object was to find the most suitable
terminal site, having in mind that not only the
immediate needs had to be met but every consider=-
ation had to be given to future expansion because
of the established fact that Iago owned a valu
able piece of producing property in Venezuela and
had every reason to expect their oil venture to
expand., Curacao was investigated to see if any
place would be suitable, as was also the coast of
Paraguana in Venezuela. After those two ploces
had been looked over thoroughly and their possi-
bilities considered, the party decided to turn
jts attention to Aruba, Having some previous in-
formation as to the possibilities of San Nicholas
Bay, the party proceeded to San Nicholas Bay,

early on arrivol in Aruba, and found ceccommoda-

tion in the "White House" which still stands op-
posite the Marinec Office. ond is used as the reo-
finery Common Labor Offices. This was the only
 house at that timo within easy reach of San Nich=-
olas Bay. After about two woeks at Sun Nicholas
studying the possiblility of dredging a channel to
the sea, tho unanimous opinion was that this was
the best place and Llessrs. Rodger, Clark and Boyd
confidontly recommonded it to tho intercested par-
tics in London, feeling sure that no - matter how
great the cxponditure required to cops with the
dredging, o good channél could be found and mado
{nto the bay, and that the rost would bo cOsSY.

Tho land for the torminal presented an
fdeal site ond this, with other advantages the
island posscssed, 80 favorably improssed Mossrs.
Rodger, Clerk and Boyd that they dccided t0 use
oll their influence to convincc those who would
be rogponsible for the largo outlay of capital
thot San Nicholas Bay was tho bost loeation for
a terminal. One outstanding odvantoge was thot
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the distance between Aruba and lLake Maracaibo
was considerably shorter than the run to Curacao
This difference in haulage would mean & saving
in any one year of many thousands of miles for
Lago's lake tankers as against others whose
principal terminal was aituated in Curacao.

In October, 1924, it was Tfinally decided
that San Nicholas Bay would be the terminal of
the Lago 4intersests and about that time the Lago
0il & Transport Company, Limited, was incorpor-
ated in Caneda, Contracts were closed for the
dredging of a channel thru the reef and & dredg-
er was s8Sent down from Charleston, S. Carolina,
to begin operations, Meantime, while the work
was progressing in the dredging of the channel
and some parts of the harbor, work was proceed-
ing at a fast pace in bullding necessary tanks
on the shore site to receive crude oil. The two
small tankers mentioned started operating in
November, 1924, and as San Nicholas could not be
opened for some time, it became necessary to
place a depot ship off the town of Oranjestad,
near the northwest end of the island and this
depot ship, S8, "Invergarry", held this station
fraa November, 1924, to July, 1925. During that
period tho two amnll vessels were augmented by
the arrival of the S3. "Invercorrie"  early in
1925, and on the arrival of that ship the Lago
Shipping Company (incorporated in London) ceme
into existencoe. It wvas apparent early in 195
that these three small ships could not bring out
the o0il in sufficient quantities to meet the
canmitnents of the Lago 0il % Transport Company,
Limited, and orders were given for the building
of the four smnll tankers known hore as the "In-

verlago” class.,

kr, J, O, Farquharson came to 4Aruba, s As-
sistant to Copt. R. Hodger, in December, 1924,
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In July, 1925, the intercsts of the Hritish
Company in the Iago Companies were sold to the
Pan Anerican Petroleum Corporation. Events from
thet time on moved fast and efforts were Tre-
doubled to open up San Nichnles Bay ot an early
dote. To anccomplish this further dredging equip-
ment wos sent fram the United States and the en-
gineoring problems connccted with the dredging
and the building of the terminnl were entrusted
to Mr. A, M, McKean, who, with splendid fore-
sight, initintive and obility carried the work
towards completion about the middle of 1927. In
1926, Mr. McKean's staff was strengthened by tim
arrival of nssistont engineers and othor skilled
men from the United States. Among the first ar-
rivals (June, 1927) was Mr. Fred Penncy, who hoad
much to do with the orecting of the boilers and
goneral mochinery and who later bocome plant
superintendent. Mr, Ralph Wetson, who 1is now
Mr, Pennoy's assistant, errived in February, 19&
one of his first jobs being the sounding of San
Nicholas Bay.

In July, 1925, the "Invergurry" was replaced
by the 8S. "Frederic Dwing", undor Copt. Jensen
wtho is well known to almost overyonc on this is-
land and is still in cherge of the vessel (Jan.
1932) now the S8, “C. J. Barkdull", and for ninec
months the ship lay ot anchor roceiving cil fram
the lake tankers which wore ploced alongside for
thot purpose just s ships ere now placed along=
side the dock. Operctions, of course, were not
on o very largo scalc ond there wes much to cantend
with due to the foct that the "Froderic Ewing"
wes lying in proctieally the open Caribbean Son.,
However, despite all obstacles, locding ghips in
this monner proceoded very satisfactorily and
when one menth the maximum of two million barrels
exported was reached, OCapt. Hodger and his staff
felt thot they were doing about the best thot wos
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possible undor the conditions. The "Frederic
Ewing" wos relieved ot its station by the arrival
of the 85, "Goorge G. Henry", Capt. Hocikman, and
this wvessel gacted ns depot ship for clmost 19
months or until Sen Nicholas Bey was opened up on
November, 17, 1927.

By that time, the lake tanker fleoet had in-
erensed from the small "Francunion" type to 12
ships of the "Inverlago" type and five others of
a slightly larger capacity had been crdered.

At the opening up of the harbor on November
17, 1927, the terminel had roody for cperatim
eight crude tanks of 70,000 barrcls capceity eoach
with the necessary steam pumps installed which
wore estimeted to be of o capaeity around 2,500
barrcls cach per hour. The oporoting staff with-
in the concession was accaumodated in 12 houses,
knowm as the frume houses, which still form part
of the village. In these days, fresh meats,
fruits, vegetables warce uiknown and all edibles
were to bo found only in cons but occasionally
anoll luxuries were brought over by the lake tan-
kers from Venczuesla. Ice was brought over from
Curacco and was usually transported in open bar-
rels, The main stable diet was, of course, chiclk-
en, which thon could be purchased ot 40 to 50
Dutech. Bggs were about one to two cents ecch,
Dutch.,

While tank building was in progress, the
contract for she building of the moin dock was
lot to John Monks & Sons of New York and they
carried out their port of the contract in a most
expeditious manner. It may be said truthfully
that thore is not o better dock to be found any-
where in the West Indics.

November 17, 1927, was o gele doy and the
honor fell en the 85, "R, W, Stowart", Caopt. lar-

gen, o performm the opening coramory. This ship



was followed on the same day by entry of theo

"Cerro Ebano", Capt. Cock, und as the loke tonk-
ors were also diverted that day from the porent
ship at Orenjested to moke Sen Nicholus their
base, it was truly o remarknble sight for all
who had a hand in the undertcking and must have
been more so to the inhabitants of this island
to find San Nicholas Bay which they had knowm as
n safe hevon for ampll vessels to be now nccom-
modoting two lorge ocean tankers and five smoll
loke tankors. It was scon opparont thaet the
loading faecilities woro all that could be desir
ed in tho way of sccurity for the ocefn going
vessels nnd if loading hod to bo spoedod up it
was only o question of more power and linea
This, of course, all came in turn until today it
can. bo rockoned thot at San HNicholas ocoan tonk-
ars can bo giver a turn-oround. which is probably
egqualled by very fow ports in the oil business.

About this time o decision was reached to
estoblish a refinery here and the advance guard
for tho building of this great plant arrived
early in March of 1928,

Meontime the building of loke tankers hod
eontinued to mect the increased developments and
in Moreh, 1928, the floect was comprised of 17
vessels, to be further cugmented during the next
yoar by three morc of larger capccity and finolly
by ono of o lurger type than all the others,
the o, '“nmﬂﬂj"-



SAN WICHOLAS HECQMES A REFINING CENTER

{ind now we come to our own part in the de-
velopment of industry in Awruba; that 1is, the
part of the Manufacturing Department. The story
ig almost as intriguing as the reality and olds
timers as well as those who are not so familiar
with the early efférts to establish a refinery
on these coral shores, will enjoy reading hr.
Don Smith's story; written in 1932):

Pan saruba hes become so civilized and com-
fortable that the few of us who landed here four
year ago (at writing) like to reminisce and
talk of old times even though only a short time
has elapsed since we also were tenderfeet in Arube;
tenderfeet both in fact and in the Western sense,
Travel around the concession on foot was not easy
when coral and cactus covered the refinery area.
Among our Tirst supplies wua 4 liberal length of
rubber belting which wus used for shoe soles.The
original instruetions carried a warning to bring
plenty of shoes 48 now ones werec unobtainable
except from the slop chests of the ships enlling
@t San liicholas. The scenes on board at each or-
rival reminded one of the stories of South Sea
gradors whose ships were besieged by swarms of
notives anxious to trade copra for beads, clothes
or what have you. A short outline of early events
might be of interest to thoss who arrived at later
dntes.

In July, 1927, the Manufacturing Department
of the Pan American Petroleum & Trongport Com-
pany vas recrgonized by the transfor of hr. p o
S. Cooke, Mr, L. G. Snith, ond myself from tho
Standard 0il Compony (Indinna) orgonization ot
Casper with instructions to proceed immediotely
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with thoe selection of o refinery site aond the
design of o refinery samewhere in the Maraoeaibo
district for the purpose af refining Vemozuelan
erudo oile In the oanrly part of August, 1927,
Mr. P. H, BEarwood, WVice-Pregsident of the Pan
Amorican Petroloum & Transport Company, oscorted
this group to Aruba via the S8, "Cerro Azul" mok-
ing o recard breaking trip from .New York in five
days and scventcon hours. In nddition to thoso
gentlomen, Mr. Poul Weidner of thoe Midwest Hefin-
ing Company was made o momber of thoe party.

Originally there was no thought of bullding
such o rofinory on the island of Aruba; thorofore
our stay ot Aruba wos short ond the wholo party
procceded tu Marocaibo to inspoet soveral loca-
tions nlong the lLake shoro. After the inspection
st Maracaibo, the party returned to aruba where,
boeause of difficultics surrounding various pos-
siblo locations in Venezuola, corcful considora-
tion was given to an aruban loection, with the
result that the presont site was cventually sel-
eceted ond design work was startcd the latter
purt of 1927, The original survoy was mode by
the inspeetion party during their visit to Aruba
most of tho cbservations being token fram tho
top of the Lage water tower, the party having
elimbod to this point of wvantage for o birdseye
view of the terrcin. The approximate locctions
of stills, tanks, poworhouse, cte., wero picked
out during this elovetod conferonce. It goos
without saying that, in spite of the self-confid-
ecnce of this group, the prospect of really stort-
ing construction in such o barren location left
ecch member of the party with some misgivings as
to the correetness of thoir judgnent.

During the homevard trip, which was mode on
the 88, "Cerro Ebano" by way of Tampico and thonce
to New York, the major details of the originnl
plant construction were decided upon.
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It was not until February, 1828, howevor,
that ' permission was given to actually stort work
February 24, 1928, witncssed o small group arrive
ing at aruba to breck ground. This groupsbousist-
ted of Mr. Williom “Errris, Mr. Eh._‘Hi nlﬂﬂdm-m
Mr., W. B. MoCune, whoso duties were to procced
irmcdictely with the construction of some sort of
housing accammodctions to take ecare of tho mom
duo to arrive later., Needless to say thot, with-
out supplics, tovls, or any surt uf equipmont,
tholr Tirst efforts achieved the results but did
not cdd beauty to the landseacpo. It was not un-
t41 spril 15, 1928, that tho first shipment of
lumbor wog received at Sen Nicholag., Mr. Glon=.
donin was appcintod Stovedore Boss ond finslly
monceed to unlosd this lunber jack-straw fashion.
Fron this point on, construction progressed thru
vorious difficulties iu the woy of delayod sup-
plies, inndequate ocquipment und tho usucl diffi-
cultics of housing, trousportction and lebor un-
+11 Docenber, 1928, when the first pieco of oquip-
mont bocano operative. All of the onergy cf tho
original construction forece 1S devoted toward
thoe construction and caapletion of the powerhouso
and topping stills. The powerhousc started in
Docambor, 1928, and tho topping stills in Januoxy
1929, and while the operation was somcwhat roggod,
tho plant hod cetunlly stortod te corn LoNOYe

Looking back cn this year, I rooeabor in o
rotlhier kaleidoscopic fashion stovedore strikos,
trouble with the local police, shortage of labor,
importation of laborers from St. Hartin and other
islends, the arrivel of the second group of men
for construction work, ineluding John Hendrikson,
V. E. Hmson, "Bob" Millor, "Bill" Ewurt, Gorald
Cross, Oscar Henschke, "Tom" Brown, Frank Hocking,
G, C, Gibson, und others who aurc now o part of
cur pormaenont organizotion; (Jan, 1932) these
mon arriving before June, 1928,
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Construction troubles are usual with any
sort of work, but with the conditions existing ct
Aruba at that time, wmore than the usuanl assort-
ment was cncountered.

To anyone who arrived in Aruba during the
early days, the growth of the community is of
mojor interest., The first arrivals found o few
families nlready established with the Lago Pet-
troloum Corporation, these fomilies being old-
timers at Aruba. Coptain Rodger, with his family,
occupled the building now wused as Rofinory Exec-
utive Office, with Mr. and Hrs. Pornoy ond Mr. omd
Mrs. Aléden as companions in their isolotion, live
ing ir two of the houses since moved to make room
for the Epgincoring cnd Accounting Offices. Sov-
ercl other houses odjolnod those, beling usod to
house various membors of the Marine Departmoent
personncl, The kiarine Department had moved to Sm
Nicholag in Novamber, 1927, tho same month that sow
tho opening of the San Nicholas harbor, a gala
cvent.

The refinery construction foreces were orig-
inally housod in barracks located directly ecast
of the present Inspection Laboratory ond it is
the nomory of these quarters that renoins with
mony of us who spent that year untangling the
dirficulties of construction on o semi-descrt
islané. By chiof rocollection of this locality
is Jim Bluejacket in his long white nightgown
parading up and doewn the coral, rounding up the
nenboers of the poker gome being promoted in Jim
Crogbie's roon wherec he could be seen pounding on
the iron triangle ealling in the stragglers. Ev-
entunlly this homolike camp was turned over to
the Kellogg Construction Company and the occu-
pants were noved to tho present villago, whore the
houses hod been under construction for soveral
nonths.



The extension of activities necessitating
the addition of tho Kellogg Conpany to ocur staff
was Cdisappointing to all those fondly locking
forwaréd t¢ houses for theolr fanilics since prop-
ises wore postponed as the houscs had t9 be used
as bachelor querters (three men .to each bedroon
and kitchon with four to six nmen in tho living
roon). Yes, thore wers lots of objections, but

it couldn't bo holpod.

A now mness-hall vas bullt aud added on to
soveral tinmocs, and aftor many delays wo openod
the hospital, then known as the new hospital.
Praviously, wo hod used a temporary shack which
served renarxably well in spito of the lack of
rol and convenience.

My best nomory of that poriod is filled
with shortoge of bods, houses, ness-hall accan-
nocations and othor facilities, coused wnainly
by oxpansions of our original plans.

The kinin Office also aigratod from ono spot
to another. A anall stono buily.j.ng. later the
nucous of the Pnrmnnuf"ﬁrﬂcn, was our first
ebodec. ILator a building noar tho Machine Shop
was built and finally tho stone house fomerly
Captoin Rodger's residence was appropriated for
this purpose. Finally houscs wero conpleted and
fonilies cormwoneed to arrive. Mrs. Cosio has
the honor of being the Tfirst to arrive, Ilonding
on Aruba, July 13, 1928, We livod in Housc #4.
Mrs, W, R. C. Miller, Mrs. BE. H. Clondenin, &nd
Mrs, Wn. McCune were the noxt arrivals, and grad-
ually the change fran o construction camp to o
village wag aecoariplishod,



ARUBA TODAY

While the Refinery was breaking throughput
records - having bettered 300,000 barrels per
day during 1937, the Colony was golng ahead in
its ovm way, Only during very short intervals
wvas the bungalow building program halted. Sev-
eral times, as many a&s fifty new bungalows were
under construction at the same time., When the
1938 count has been made, there will be approx-
imately 500 bungalows in the Colony. With the
additions now under way to the eight bachelor
quarters which house the single men (or should
we say men whose femilics are not in Aruba?),
it is estimated that 2500 people can be housed
in the Colony. These Tfigures do not include
Lego Helghts, which section has 100 bungalows
and several bachelor querters.

As the Colony increased in size, it improv-
od in eppoorance. Gardoning is responsible
for the almost magic f{ashion in which the droab
villoge, eitting high on a barren coral island,
wes transformed into o community of attractive
yards and strects which would compare favorably
with & suburb in the Stotes. Only the patience
and persistence of the first gardencrs ecould
have made these things possible. During the
early days of the Colony, it was belicvod that
but fow plonts and flowers could withstand the
rigors of tho salty BEost Winds, and tho heat.
Goots, lizords, ants and mony other posts, to-
gether with a shortage of fresh wator, took
tho pleasurc fram gordening. But as time
went on, eambitious flowor leovors wore oncour-
aged by the Company to overcome the many dif-
ficulties. Soil and fertilizor wore made
available. Vinter was suppliod until a truly
ranarkable cnd =ratifying effeet hns boon dc-



complishod, Almost every bungolow haos some
floral exhibit of note. Potios, porgolus and
arbors have beoen erccted in beautiful gardons,
adding materially to tho pleasure of living in
the Gﬂlﬂﬂ?l

The Community School has grovm in proportion
with the Colony. From a onc-roam one-teacher
school in 1929, it hos bocome a mnmodorn insti-
tution of leorning roquiring o staff of twolw
teachers to impart knowledge to noarly 250
children., Throe lerge buildings housing class-
rooms, library, Ilaberatery and an auditorium
have boen consgtructed. A lorge, woll-equippod
play ground adjoins theec buildings, and the
students of the school are offered evcry oad-
vantage of thoe public schools in the Statos.

During 1937, construction work wos started
on the now $200,000. hospital., About the time
of its completion, o chunge of building schod-
ule domanded that tho site on which the now
hospital had boon crected would have to bo
used for the two dozon or more Hortonsphoroids
to be addod to the over aspreading tank fem of
the Refirery. accordingly, the entiro hospi-
tal building vas moved on o speeinlly construc-
ted railroad, to o point a mile further east,
on the top of o knoll neer the Colorado Lights
Tho hospital is cquipped with the very latost
modical parcphernalic, and is considercd the
finest hospital in this part of the world.
To operate 1it, a staff of five doctors, two
phormacists, two tochnicians, about twenty
nurses ond & dozen or more clerks is roquired
There are divisions in the new building to
accommodate native und foreipn employces, with
nany private roans for poticnts requiring thom.

The Esso Club, opened officinlly at the 19
New Yoars perty, was first cnlled tho Pan Jom



Club, the present name being givan it early in
1938, Since that first mnonorable New Years
party, the Club has boen the sceno of nmony goy
sooinl affairs. Practieally aoll of the comun-
ity functions of the Colony have token place
under the Esso Club roof.

During the poriod since 1930, many oadditions
and alterations Love been made to the Club build-
ing to noke it the nodern elub it 1is in 1938.
The theatre, when constructed, wuas without a
roof over the auditorium. Dences, silent
rnovies ond conteur theatricals were given in
the open air. The elenents proved highly detri-
mental to the dance floor, and when the silent
riovies foded out for the nore mnodern talkles,
the high winds which swept through the auditor-
jun interfered to o considerable extent with
the accoustics. In 1933, a roof wme construc-
ted, whiech monde the ouditoriun ideal for tropi-
cal entortainnment,

During the early roofless days, a Srefgp ocall-
ing theniselves The Little Theatre Fleyers pro-
Guced o series of plays. "HANDS W™ and "SAFE~
TY FIRST" wore the first of nany throe-act plays
presented, The Players were net with enthusi-
asn at oach perforuance, and after the roof nade
it cosier for their efforte to be put ocross,
guite o nunbor of plays with Broadway prescnta-
tions werc given, and an unusunlly high stand-
ard for criatour porformances was cstablishod.

In 1934, under tho managenent of Phil Huntor,
a club restaurant was openod. Endless difficul-
ties arose, and in spite of a denand for a sor-
vico of this kind, the vonture was abandoned as
{nprectical. The roon specially dosigned to
house the restoaurant is now used for art exhib-
its and an occasional cocktail dance.
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About the sarie tine, the wing which houses
the gooae roon ond tlie cssonbly roo wos oddod,
Pool tables Ind previously becn locoted in the
nain lobby, and from tle first had beon ob-
Jectionable in that proriinent thoroughfare.
The assenbly roay supplies c long felt need of
tho vurious clubs and orgonizations in the Colony,
who use tho sane for their nectings.

The Tfirst riess=hall was locaoted in a shed
on the site of the proscent Personnel Office.
it was roploced by o larger anc botter cquipped
ness~hnll ocarly in 1929 - on the location whoro
tlic preoscnt dining holl gtands today. The nane
"ross-hall" was formnlly toboood by the Manage-
nent in 1930, ond "Cining hall"™ was substitutod.
Various cdditions hove booi: pmde to tho build-
ing froa tine to tine in order to provide prop-
or accorxwdcotions for +thoe 1necroasing bacholor
personnol. Aftor the failure of the Club res-
tourant, o section of the dining haoll wos givan
over W serving noals to thoso who wishod o
gecure restauront sorvice., Known os tho Pri-
vate Dining Hall, this foatursc has proveon vory
populur with +the occuptnts of the bungolows,
who are now priviloged to socure neoals whon the
occapions denmnd,
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IN COHCLUSION

In 0ll departiients, froa tho essential oil
throughput to such attendant fecturos as bungh=-
lows, school curricula, bokery products, pianos,
and cll tho oyrind fine details that rizko up conr
nunity life, the Lagoe Colony hoas grown as fast os
a nining boon towm. It differs fros o nushroon
town, howovor, in thot its foundctions ore dowm
decp, and its life is as full anc variecd as thot
of aay cormuiity its size anywhoro.

Muss psychology lhas chonged in reocent yours,
ané whero tho ocorxon idea formorly was to spend
onc or at most two contracts hore oand then ro-
sottle in the United OStates, a :mjority of the
cclony's residents now look formard to an indef-
inite stay in Jruba, and plan thoir lives ac-
coréingly, with rwueh thoe s&ic problans, conven-
fences, Juoys and sorrowus that they would have
"at howe", o torm: whieh grodunlly becorios synon-
ywous with "Aruba”.
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